Regents’ Academic Advisory Committee on Foreign Languages
Minutes
April 11-12, 2005
Jekyll Island, Georgia

Monday, April 11, 2005

Jim Chesnut, Chair, called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. He asked for committee
members to introduce themselves and sent around the official list of names and contact
information for correction.

Those in attendance were Ellen Blossman, Armstrong Atlantic State University; Jana
Sandarg, Augusta State University; Joe Johnson, Clayton College & State University;
Patty Davis, Darton College; Martha Hughes (Secretary), East Georgia College; Sheila
McCoy, Floyd College; Victoria Dubriel, Fort Valley State University; Joyce Jenkins
(non-voting representative), Fort Valley State University; Dale Crandall, Gainesville
College; Roger Noel, Georgia College & State University; David Shook (Chair-Elect),
Georgia Institute of Technology; Dina Foster, Georgia Perimeter College; Donnie
Richards, Georgia Southern University; Bruno Braunrot, Georgia State University; Bill
Griffin, Kennesaw State University; Lynne Bryan, Macon State College; Trino Prados,
Middle Georgia College; Jim Chesnut (Chair), North Georgia College & State
University; Noel Fallows, University of Georgia; Denise Overfield, University of West
Georgia; Viki Soady, Valdosta State University; Rick Sutton, University System Office.

Jim Chesnut announced that we would start with three presenters from the System Office:
Ryan Thornton, Jessica Somers, and Rick Sutton.

1. Ryan Thornton. Online Language Courses.

Through an NSEP grant, courses from 1001 through 2002 have been developed
over the past three years in Japanese, Chinese and Russian. Ryan explained that
Horizon Wimba is a program that allows online group sessions, also called “a live
classroom.” Ryan played an archived presentation from Horizon Wimba on
application sharing. He then demonstrated a lesson in Japanese with audiofiles,
the white board feature, and audio interactions with students.

Di CO TDO Tc-0.001 Tw(oh 20c-nmDO0 Tcstuiw( )1(onstr in)6r)-5.(2rlutTw(Di CO TDO Tc(9d Shool






Other issues:

1. A graduation rate task force was appointed last year and led by Provost Henry.
The committee reported that the USG has a graduation rate of 53.7%. Best
practices recommendations were included in the report. A target will be set for
each institution. Studies of increased graduation and retention rates for foreign
language students and study abroad st



Denise asked if the double diversity, double numbers teachers’ initiative proposed by Jan
Kettlewell was funded. Rick responded that it was not, but that Dr. Kettlewell may be
able to produce some funding out of discretionary funds. Also, some other sources are
possible for at least a few pilot programs.

Jim asked how foreign languages generate money. Rick responded that the discipline of
foreign languages is in Basket 3, a higher rating than most humanities disciplines,



analyzed and discussed AP credit data for your discipline, I would be interested in
your recommendations.”

Jim opened the floor for discussion about the desirability of having common AP scores,
and a summary of that discussion follows:

Bill Griffin said that typically students who take AP placement exams are going to be
majors. He added that he had never seen a 5.

Many committee members commented that they had never seen the AP policies listed by
institution in the handout from the UGA Office of Institutional Effectiveness entitled
“Advanced Placement Credits at USG Institutions, Fall 2004.”

Jim said the committee could make a recommendation for common scores, but the
ultimate decision rests with individual departments.

Ellen said that students at AASU must make at least a C at the 3000 level to receive
credit for lower levels.

Patty suggested that we should have common scores since we have common course
descriptions for the 1000 level.

Donnie said no, that the decision should be departmental/institutional. I1f the BOR does
not demand standardization, we should leave it the way it is. If we did decide to
standardize scores, we would need to study tests, needs and scores carefully. We would
need to appoint a subcommittee.

Lynne reiterated the concern that at the institutional level, the decision on policies for AP



Jim summarized the discussion by saying that three issues seemed to be emerging:

=

The committee does not want to recommend common AP scores at this time.

2. The committee should appoint a subcommittee to look at AP and CLEP
issues.

3. The committee should recommend that foreign language educators or faculty
in general should be making these policies, not administrators.

Noel (Fallows) asked if there should be a review of institutional AP policies on an annual



Jim asked for other effects of budgetary cuts on quality issues in foreign languages. The



Discussion ensued about Suggested Issue #1. Dale noted that English, math, history, and
all other disciplines from high school are represented in the core, except for foreign
languages, which is “strangely absent,” especially in light of the emphasis on
internationalization within the USG.

Ellen asked about the question of hours, since there is only a certain number of hours in
the core.

Sheila stated that we need to rethink the number of hours in the core. David said that the
USG should be actively looking for ways to help students gain proficiency without
adding hours to the core.

Bill raised the issue of how we would handle the number of students if we required
foreign language of all students.

Viki said that we should not tie any proposal to include foreign languages in the core to a
specific location in the core, but that we should mainly try to get the attention of the BOR
and make the point that we have been left out.

Jim asked Viki and Sheila to draft a statement and present it to the committee the next
day.

Suggested Issue #2: workload. David said that the quality of instruction is being
negatively impacted by class size and workload. The committee decided to combine
Suggested Issues #2 and #3.

Suggested Issue #4: articulation between high school and college foreign language
courses. After discussion, it was decided that this issue needs to be addressed with the
DOE. Bruno noted that articulation has preoccupied the BOR for years and asked if there
is a report on those activities. Lynne agreed that there is a need for communication
regarding the results of the P-16 articulation study.

Suggested Issue # 5: The lack of integration of foreign languages into international
programs and studies (suggested by Patty).

After further discussion, the Committee decided on the following three issues as the most
important ones facing the discipline of foreign languages:

1. Exclusion of six semester hours of foreign languages in the core

2. Increased class size and heavy workload

3. Lack of integration of foreign languages into international programs and
studies



By-Laws

As requested by Dorothy Zinsmeister, the Committee approved the by-laws drafted by
Jim and distributed via the listserv prior to the meeting. After discussion, Denise moved
to approve the by-laws and Dale seconded. The motion passed unanimously. (A copy of
the Committee’s by-laws will be posted on the USG website.)

The meeting was adjourned at 5:37 p.m.

Tuesday, April 12, 2005

Jim called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. Those in attendance were Ellen Blossman,
Jana Sandarg, Martha Hughes, Sheila McCoy, Victoria Dubriel, Joyce Jenkins, Dale
Crandall, Roger Noel, David Shook, Dina Foster, Bruno Braunrot, Bill Griffin, Lynne
Bryan, Trino Prados, Jim Chesnut, Noel Fallows, Denise Overfield, Viki Soady, and Rick
Sutton.

Jim asked for volunteers for a subcommittee on the AP issue. Bill, Sheila, and Dina
agreed to serve. Donnie Richards was appointed in absentia.

ASL

There are two major issues of concern:
1. Can ASL fulfill the CPC deficiency?
2. Can ASL fulfill the foreign language requirement?

Jana said that we can’t separate the two issues.

Trino said that the same question arose at a previous college where he worked. The
president declared that ASL would fulfill language requirements over objections from the
faculty.

Bruno said that when this issue arose at his institution, he declared that ASL is “a worthy
language but not a foreign one.” The issue was dropped.

Jim commented that those opposed to sign language should not be viewed as
unsympathetic to the hearing impaired. He also read a comment that Elizabeth Webb had
sent that ASL does fulfill the two year foreign language requirement for high school
students who are hearing impaired.

Sheila said that foreign languages have their own sign language. In the past, FLAAC
accepted the argument that it is a worthy language but not a foreign language, and the
committee voted against this proposal.



Trino said that at a previous school, students with learning disabilities were allowed to
use ASL as a foreign language. He added that he is totally opposed to this practice
because it is not a foreign language.

Ellen said that sign language has no literary or oral tradition.

Sheila said that proponents argue that sign language does have a literary and an oral
tradition. But she agreed with Trino that ASL does not contribute to internationalization.

David agreed that the lack of internationalization is the strongest argument against ASL
as a foreign language. It is the international and the cultural aspect that sets foreign
languages apart.

Dina asked why other forms of English would not be considered a foreign language if we
accept ASL as a foreign language.

Viki argued that master signing is quite complex and has four levels of difficulty. She felt
that the acceptance of ASL to fulfill foreign language requirements is coming since sign
language can be done bilingually.

Denise said that if native French speakers must fulfill the foreign language requirement,
so should people who are proficient in ASL.

Jana asked if students who use ASL to fulfill their language requirement in high school
are admitted to college as having fulfilled their CPC requirement in foreign languages.
Dale said yes, since only a box is checked off on the transcript, and the college must
accept that.

Jim said that we could agree to accept sign language if students could sign in a foreign
language.

Lynne noted that we are putting students at a disadvantage if we do not give them the
benefit of learning a foreign language in the international arena.

David agreed. He said that all students should be “internationalized” and understand
other cultures. We don’t want to leave out hearing impaired students.

Trino pointed out that most students who would take these courses would be North
American students who are not hearing impaired.

Denise said that if there is no issue of handicap, then we are under no obligation to serve
that population.

The question of whether or not we have to accept two years of ASL from the high school

as fulfilling the college foreign language requirement was raised. Rick said that in a
number of disciplines, there is a discrepancy between what secondary education says

10



fulfills a CPC deficiency and what the college says, so it is the final decision of the
Advisory Committee on Foreign Languages and the USG.

After discussion, Bill moved that we adopt

11



Dina brought up the problem of the transfer of credit within the USG, particularly in the
case of language courses that are four-hour courses at one institution but three-hour
courses at another.

Rick said that if a student graduates, the credit must be taken, but if the student does not
graduate, “it’s up for grabs.” Rick also stated that study-abroad credit from USG
programs should be treated just like any other USG credit granted on Georgia campuses.

Dina then asked how other institutions deal with the SACS requirements for adjunct
instructors. Discussion ensued. It was determined that various institutions have various
policies regarding what constitutes qualified faculty to meet the requirements of SACS.
Rick said that larger institutions are not as vulnerable to being checked by SACS as
smaller institutions are.

Sheila asked if credit can be given for a non-USG study abroad program. Dale said that
the easiest approach is to give credit by examination.

Viki asked if certificate programs are automatically accepted by USG campuses. Rick
said that they are not, that acceptance of such programs is a voluntary action on the part
of each campus.

Jim asked if all courses for the minor have to be taken on the home campus. In other
words, can study abroad programs count towards the minor?

David said that the current policy at Georgia Tech does not allow study abroad credit to
count towards the minor, but that the Curriculum Committee is planning to change the
policy. In the future, students will even be able to do all of their minor abroad.

Noel said that 50% of courses must be taken on the home campus for the major and the
minor, although any UGA study abroad program would be considered the home campus.

Jim called for announcements and other business. Lynne asked about a video project and
more advocacy for FLAG. Rick said that his office’s operating budget has been cut by
55%, so they are constrained.

Lynne also proposed a project of a clickable map of Georgia with markings of different

cultural and international events. Rick said that the OIE has a more “low tech” listing on
its web page with cultural events around the

12



Jim gave the committee greetings from past Chair Joel Walz, who has retired. Jim plans
to send certificates to retirees. Jim also asked for everyone to pose for a group picture
after the meeting.

The meeting was adjourned at 11:10 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Martha Hughes, Secretary
East Georgia College
May 2, 2005

Attachment: Appendix 1

13



APPENDIX 1

RECOMMENDATION
FROM THE
UNIVERSITY SYSTEM ADVISORY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE ON: Foreign Languages
CHAIRPERSON: Richard A. LaFleur DATE: 27 April 1990

RECOMMENDATION: In response to a proposal submitted from the Regents’
Student Advisory Committee (via Dr. Ralph Hemphill) that American Sign Language
(ASL) be recognized as fulfilling both the CPC foreign language admission requirement
and the various foreign language graduation requirements of individual institutional
degree programs, the Academic Advisory Committee on Foreign Languages (AACFL)
recommends that ASL not be endorsed as a substitution for such requirements, except as
already provided in the case of students with handicapping conditions for whom such a
substitution may be deemed academically appropriate.

RATIONALE: Inthe AACFL’s discussion, it was noted that degree requirements are an
institutional prerogative, not a System mandate, and that issues related to such
requirements should be addressed at the institutional level. It was further noted that, in
the case of students with handicapping conditions (including hearing impairment),
policies are already in place allowing for exemptions or substitutions for both CPC (see
section 1V.a of Anne Flower’s 11-30-89 memo to the System’s Chief Academic Officers:
“Although institutions may not waive the College Preparatory Curriculum requirements,
they should accommodate the special needs of students with handicapping conditions in
order to assist them in meeting these requirements.”) and graduation requirements (in
accordance with federal regulations regarding persons with handicapping conditions), so
that the SAC proposal seemed to be an issue primarily for students who may have an
interest in ASL but who do not themselves have handicapping conditions that make their
study of a foreign language difficult or impossible. Greg Duncan, Foreign Language
Consultant for the Georgia Department of Education, noted during our meeting that the
Department of Education had no official policy on this issue, but that in general ASL was
not construed as a substitute for foreign language in the CPC, because it lacked the
component of international awareness, which is a major objective of foreign language
study. Most members of the AACFL agreed with this point emphatically.

Other issues raised in our discussion of the proposal were: What would the
content of such courses as ASL 101 or 104 be? Are advanced ASL courses actually
possible? ASL does qualify as a language, linguists agree, but is it a foreign language
with an international cultural component? If a non-handicapped student’s motive for
studying ASL is to enable him/her to work with or teach handicapped students, shouldn’t
such a person have foreign language and international competence at least equivalent to
that of other students entering or graduating from the same degree program (e.g.,
shouldn’t a teacher of the handicapped have at least the same skills and knowledge as
other persons with the same college degree and not have in fact a narrower humanistic

14



background?). What are the standards for measuring proficiency in ASL? The four skills
of language learning (i.e., listening, speaking, reading, and writing) are not developed in

15



